
A Thread Through History:  

The story of three schools and the Threads Guild building (PART ONE) 

by Rita Moir, February 2022 

The history of the Threads Guild tells the story of three different buildings, all part of a 

community history spanning more than a century. From its early days of readin’, writin’ and 

’rithmatic, the school also served as a hall where community alliances and divisions, arson, 

agriculture, and arts made their mark. The story of the three schools and their place in Slocan 

Valley history veers from heart-warming to shocking and back again. 

The original Perry Siding (or Perry’s Siding) School was built in 1908. 

Perry Siding School circa 1915. Hufty family collection photo from The Third Crop. The school served for about 

13 years. Many of the family names of children here and in news clippings of the time are still familiar today.  

That earliest building, as small as it looked – and it did get an addition in 1914 – served as a 

school, but also as a meeting place (in fact the headquarters) for the local Farmer’s Institute, for 

the Presbyterian minister’s sermons, St. Patrick’s Day Celebrations, games days and lectures on 

agricultural topics such as apple disease. After a long meeting, 100 people might visit and dance 

late into the night before heading home by sleigh on snowy roads, back to farms in an era when 

John Graham sold rich bottom land $250 an acre and R.D. Kennedy sold young pigs for $5.  
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Articles report celebrations of “The Empire” as a major part of school and community events, 

with games, song and speeches; women from the district were instrumental in the organizational 

work. 

It’s unclear why this original school was 

replaced. But in 1921 the school board 

advertised for land to build a new one. The lot 

description in the clipping to the right – where 

the second school would be built – is the same as 

that of the current Threads Guild. 

  This 1921 lot description is for the land 

   the current Threads Guild is built upon. 

 
Ad and story from The Daily News 1921. 



Builder John Avis always did 

handstands atop his construction 

projects. This picture is of the 

second Perry Siding School. 

This photo was likely taken in 

1922, though it was misdated in 

The Third Crop as 1937. 

 

 

 

And, as with the first Perry’s School, this one served 

both students and the larger community as a home 

for meetings, celebrations and dances, with the 

exuberant reportage that it was “without exception 

the finest building in the valley.” At the grand 

opening in 1922, 150 people sang, danced, and 

enjoyed ginger beer and ice cream until the wee 

hours of 3 a.m. 

 

 

 

  

 Nelson Daily News, 9 Sept 1922 

 

 

  



The school teacher received just over $1,000 per year, and taught 25 students. Most, if 

not all, teachers were female, but ads starting in 1930 gave preference to male applicants. 

 July 10, 1930 The Daily News 

 



 

Photo from BC Archives 1923. The completed schoolhouse that lasted from Sept., 1922 to April, 1937. 

This second school, “without exception the finest building in the valley,” just15 years old, 

burned to the ground in 1937. It, like 10 other halls and community schools, including Appledale 

and Winlaw, was victim to a wave of arsons throughout the Kootenays. It was a year of 

incredible tension, divisions, hatred and terror that affected all the people in our valley and the 

entire area. 

 

April 9, 1937 Nelson Daily News 



The Sons of Freedom sect, who strenuously objected to registration of marriages, militarism in 

schooling, conscription, paying taxes and many other government regulations, was blamed and 

the atmosphere of the Kootenays grew violent and racist. The entire Doukhobor community, no 

matter what faction they identified with – mainstream or radical – took the brunt. An afternoon 

in the Touchstones Archives in Nelson, reading the papers in April 1937, reveals the fear, the 

huge community meetings, the repercussions. The Winlaw Farmers’ Institute – which 

traditionally headquartered in the Perry Siding School – called for boycotts of all Doukhobor 

farm produce, for the segregation of all Doukhobors, and for them to be put on reservations. The 

paper’s letters columns were full of hatred and racism and fear. It wasn’t only the Sons of 

Freedom who were targeted, but all Doukhobors. Doukhobor children were turned away from 

school; armed men patrolled local roads at night in the Perry’s area, and Doukhobors were 

subject to random beatings. The letters columns were rife with calls for their expulsion from 

Canada, along with the deportation of local Chinese people, and for the return of “white” rights. 

It was a sickening time of our history, and the furor only died down during massive local and 

international celebrations of the British Empire, the coronation of King George VI and then 

coverage of the marriage of Wallis Simpson and the Duke of Windsor. 

In this aftermath of the arsons, schools and halls were rebuilt. Local newspapers have yet to be 

digitized past 1936, so it’s difficult to learn when the third Perry Siding School (now the Threads 

Guild) was built. A new Castlegar hall was going up in April of 1937, so it’s quite possible 

Perry’s was rebuilt at the same time. 

Again, in 1953, Perry’s was a scene of unrest, with Freedomites encamped on land adjacent to 

the school, and with nude protests visible to all. 144 people were arrested and 103 Freedomite 

children were taken into custody and shipped to New Denver. Thus began the forced and 

traumatic removal of children from their homes, protest treks to Vancouver, and years of family 

separation and enforced education that made the news worldwide.  

Sometimes in the midst of our daily lives, we forget our history…and so this time of turmoil – all 

around the Perry’s Schoolhouse – recedes. While our story grows more settled, the history 

remains the backdrop of who we are today. 

 


